
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, July 19, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held June 21, 2021 

b. Approve Resolution to Establish a Bank Account for SPLOST VII  
 

8. Employee Recognition 
 

BUSINESS 
 

9. ANX C2100043 and ZA C2100043: Allen Street Properties LLC and B & K Turner Family LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 70.808 acres (amended application) tract 
known as a portion of TMP 090 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from 
County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 
(Single Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 14, 2020 and 
November 9, 2020. City Council on November 16, 2020 and June 21, 2021.  City Council for a 
decision on July 19, 2021.   
 

10. An Ordinance to Amend The City of Dawsonville Code of Ordinances Regarding Fire Prevention and 
Protection; To Provide for an Effective Date; And for Other Purposes (First Reading: July 19, 2021; 
Second Reading and Consideration to Adopt: August 2, 2021) 

 

11. Transfer Property Ownership from Downtown Development Authority (DDA) to City of Dawsonville 
12. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) – Resolution and Project Recommendations 
13. 2021 Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) Safety Grant Award 

 

WORK SESSION 
 

14. Overnight Parking on City Property 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

15. Bob Bolz, City Manager 

16. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

 
     ADJOURNMENT   
 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, August 2, 2021 
 

 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held June 21, 2021 

b. Approve Resolution to Establish a Bank Account for SPLOST VII  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD JUNE 21, 2021 
 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 21, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Pro Tem Caleb Phillips called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember William Illg, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember John Walden, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly 
Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Planning and Zoning Director David Picklesimer, 
Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway and Utilities Operation Manager Jacob Barr.   

 

Mayor Eason was not present.  
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember French. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Pro Tem Phillips announced only one City Council meeting will be held 
in July and is scheduled for July 19, 2021.  He also announced the next Food Truck night will be held 
on July 9, 2021 followed by a movie in Main Street Park.  Councilmember Walden announced his U8 
All Star Girls Softball team took second place at the Regionals and will be playing for the State title 
later this week.       
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to amend the agenda to add item #18 Plan Review Service 
Fee made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a, b) made by 
M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.    

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held June 7, 2021 

b. Approve 2021 Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) Annual Convention and Training 
 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNTION:  City Manager Bolz announced Westin Lee was awarded the May 2021 
Employee of the Month.  He also announced Jacob Barr was promoted to Utility Operations Manager 
and Blake Croft was promoted to Utility Crew Chief. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

9. ANX C2100043 and ZA C2100043: Allen Street Properties LLC and B & K Turner Family LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 70.808 acres (amended application) tract 
known as a portion of TMP 090 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from 
County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 
(Single Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 14, 2020 and 
November 9, 2020. City Council on November 16, 2020 and June 21, 2021.  City Council for a 
decision on July 19, 2021.   
 

Planning Director Picklesimer read the annexation and rezoning request.   
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.  Public Hearing was conducted by Mayor Pro Tem Phillips.  
 

The following persons spoke in favor of the request: 
 

• Christopher Light, 112 North Main Street, Cumming – He spoke on behalf of Allen Street 
Properties LLC. providing points as to why this development would be a good fit for 
Downtown Dawsonville.  Additionally, he spoke about revisions submitted for consideration 
regarding public access to the development.   

• Chris Maddox, 2470 Sandy Plains Road, Marietta – He discussed the November 2020 traffic 
study for this development. He stated the report indicates an acceptable level of service at 
the four intersections and recommends proceeding with the entrance as indicated on the 
plans. No other negative impacts were reported. 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 21, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

                 Councilmember Walden asked if a roundabout was still a consideration; the answer was no.   
 

• Susan Muenchen, 1512 Frank Bruce Road, Dawsonville – She stated she was previously 
against the development but has since changed her mind.  She believes something will 
come eventually and would prefer to see the development that is being planned.   
 

                  The following citizens spoke in opposition of the request:  
 

• Michelle Hout, 61 Turner Drive, Dawsonville – She spoke about Turner Drive stating it is a 
private road and maintained by the residents who live on it sharing her concerns about the 
road being used as an access to the development for EMS or otherwise.  She feels it will 
cause a hardship for the residents on their road.  
 

• Tony Hout, 61 Turner Drive, Dawsonville - He spoke more about the concerns of Turner 
Drive and who is responsible for it and is concerned about traffic coming down the private 
road.        

      The allotted time to speak had expired.  Motion to increase the public hearing time to five minutes 
per side made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

 Mr. Hout reiterated his wife’s comments that Turner Drive has been maintained by the 
existing residents for years and would like that taken into consideration.  

 

• Timothy Murdock, 15 Turner Drive, Dawsonville – He spoke in opposition to the request 
citing traffic issues and concerns about the privacy of the residents on Turner Drive.  
 

 Mayor Pro Tem Phillips invited the parties of Allen Street Properties to speak in favor based on the 
comments received from the public.  

 

• Christopher Light, 112 North Main Street, Cumming – He stated he hears the concerns about 
Turner Drive which is why the condition was offered to not access it since it is a private road.  
He also confirmed they are proposing 124 lots.  

 

• Michael Turner – He stated he is offering to put a gate up on Turner Drive that will be used 
for emergency services only.  He stated he wants to do what is right for the citizens and 
stressed his passion for Dawson County.  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Phillips asked Mr. Turner if he is ok with the condition that no residential traffic can 
go up or down the road; Mr. Turner responded that he agrees with that condition.  Christopher Light 
stated that he can rewrite the condition to include no residential traffic instead of just stating EMS 
traffic only. 
 

Motion to close the public hearing made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. ANX C2100192 and ZA C2100192: Charles Alan Barge has petitioned to annex into the city limits of 
Dawsonville the 44.82 acres combined tracts known as TMP 070 050, located at 612 Duck Thurmond 
Rd, 2.98 acres; TMP 070 004, located at 690 Duck Thurmond Rd, 2.95 acres; TMP 069 037 located 
at 694 Duck Thurmond Rd, 14.46 acres; TMP 069 089, located at 788 Duck Thurmond Rd; 2.96 
acres; TMP 069 036, located 840 Duck Thurmond Rd, 14.38 acres; TMP 069 073, located at 914 
Duck Thurmond Rd, 7.09 acres; with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSRMM (Residential 
Sub-Rural Manufactured/Moved) to City Zoning of R1 (Single Family Residential).  Public Hearing 
Dates:  Planning Commission on May 10, 2021 and City Council on June 7, 2021.  City Council for a 
decision on June 21, 2021. 
 

Planning Director Picklesimer read the annexation and rezoning request citing the Planning 
Department recommendation for a 40’ undisturbed buffer along the perimeter lot lines 1–13 and 28– 
29.   
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 21, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Councilmember Illg asked a question of the applicant concerning the modern look of the homes and 
asking if the architect would consider homes more conducive to the Georgia mountains look and feel. 
Cheryl Capwell responded on behalf of the applicant stating the photos provided were conceptual 
drawings of the proposed homes and the intention is to combine a modern look using natural materials 
to blend in with the existing environment.  An architectural committee for the HOA will be overseeing 
the look and design of the homes which could be described as rural modern.   
 

Councilmember French asked if the applicant was comfortable with the recommendation of the 40’ 
undisturbed buffer; Ms. Capwell responded yes they agree with the recommendation and there is no 
intention of clear cutting the property.  He further asked if the homes will be easily seen from the main 
road; Ms. Capwell stated with the buffer she does not believe they can be seen from the main road, 
however, some homes will be visible from the racetrack.  She further expressed the plan is to buffer 
in the gaps of existing driveways.  
 

Motion to approve the annexation and rezone request with the condition of the Planning Commission 
for a 40’ undisturbed buffer along the perimeter lot lines of 1-13 and 28-29 made by M. French; second 
by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  (Exhibit “A”) 
 

11. RESOLUTION TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE FY 2021-2022 
BUDGET:  Motion to approve the adoption of the FY 2021-2022 budget by resolution made by W. 
Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  (Exhibit “B”) 

 

12. AWARD BID – ALLEN STREET SIDEWALK:  Motion to award the Allen Street Sidewalk bid to 
Summit Construction & Development, LLC in the amount of $147,244.50 to be paid out of SPLOST 
VI made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

13. AWARD BID – ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS:   Motion to award the Roadway Improvements, Phase 
I bid to Blount Construction Company, Inc. with Change Order No. 1 reducing the project scope to 
not include drainage improvements on Jack Heard Road in the amount of $247,819.71 to be paid out 
of SPLOST VI made by W. Illg; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

WORK SESSION 
 

14. ROAD REHABILITATION JOINT PROJECT – HOWSER MILL ROAD:  City Manager Bolz reported 
on the scope of the joint project with Dawson County to repave Howser Mill Road. 
 

Motion to approve the expenditure not to exceed $257,000.00 to be paid out of SPLOST VI and to 
utilize the $125,000.00 from Dawson County for joint paving, if agreeable by Commissioners, for 
SPLOST VII made by M. French; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

15. FINANCIAL POLICY - INVESTMENTS:  Finance Administrator Gazaway stated there is an 
inconsistency in the Financial Policy where the policy includes brokers and dealers under the 
investment section but only lists protection under FDIC whereas brokers and dealers should be under 
SIPC.  Council needs to determine whether to keep brokers and dealers as an option under 
investments and to then include the language of SIPC or to remove the broker and dealers’ option.  
 

Motion to keep brokers and dealers as an option for investments in the Financial Policy and add the 
language of Securities Investors Protection Corporation (SIPC) to the policy made by W. Illg; second 
by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

16. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz commented he had no additional remarks to the 
report he submitted but noted the leak adjustment total is $568.79.  No questions from Council. 
 

17. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances and 
activity provided through May 31, 2021.  No questions from Council. 

 

18. PLAN REVIEW SERVICE FEE:  Planning Director Picklesimer reported the Council approved 
additional engineering firms for on demand plan review services on June 7, 2021 and is requesting 
the Council consider approval of the updated plan review service fees as follows: 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 21, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 

• Residential development preliminary and final plat review fee of $40.00 per lot for 
developments less than 50 lots and minimum fee $1,000.00. 

• Residential development preliminary and final plat plan review fee of $25.00 per lot for 
developments greater than 50 lots. 

• Commercial civil development preliminary and as-built plan review fee $1,000.00. 
• Commercial building plan review fee $1000.00 
• Retaining wall > 6ft plan review fee $750.00. 
• Retaining wall > 6ft building permit fee $250.00. 

 
                 Motion to approve the plan review service fees as presented made by W. Illg; second by M. French. 

Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 
POINT OF ORDER ON AGENDA ITEM #10 
 

 Planning Director Picklesimer is requesting clarification on Agenda Item #10 citing the conditions were 
recommended by the Planning Department not the Planning Commission and requests an 
amendment to the motion.   

 

 Motion for reconsideration on Agenda Item #10 made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.   

 

 Motion to approve the annexation and rezone request with the condition of the Planning Department 
for a 40’ undisturbed buffer along the perimeter lot lines of 1-13 and 28-29 made by M. French; second 
by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 5:57 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  

 

 
Approved this 19th day of July 2021. 

 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 21, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

                 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
  
 
    
 
 
Attested: _________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A BANK ACCOUNT FOR SPLOST VII 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
    TO APPROVE RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A BANK ACCOUNT TO DEPOSIT AND 

DISTRIBUTE FUNDS FROM SPLOST VII RECEIPTS 
 
     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION R2021-02 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA ESTABLISHING A 
BANK ACCOUNT FOR SPLOST VII 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Special Election held on March 16, 2021 resulted in the residents of Dawson County 

approving a one percent sales and use tax for a period of six years with collections beginning on July 1, 
2021; 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville and Dawson County entered into an Intergovernmental 

Agreement on June 7, 2021 memorializing their agreement on the SPLOST and the distribution thereof;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville does hereby authorize the Mayor to execute documents to open 

and/or close checking accounts as needed; 
 
WHEREAS, a separate bank account must be established for the purpose of deposits and 

distributions of SPLOST receipts;  
 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Dawsonville to open 

an interest-bearing bank account with United Community Bank for the purpose of deposits and distributions 
of the SPLOST receipts due the City of Dawsonville.  The authorized signatures on said account are to be 
Mayor Mike Eason and City Manager Robert Bolz.   

 
SO RESOLVED this 2nd day of August 2021. 

 
        ________________________________ 
        Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
        ________________________________ 
        Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
        ________________________________ 
        William Illg, Councilmember Post 2 

 
        ________________________________ 
                   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 

 
        _______________________________ 
        Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• JUNE 2021 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  
• EMPLOYEE OF THE SECOND QUARTER 
• 2 YEAR SERVICE AWARD FOR DAVID PICKLESIMER 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ANX C2100043 AND ZA C2100043         
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021     _____ 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #__________ NA _____________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____  Annual Budget:_____ Capital Budget  Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fun:_____ General Fund 

 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:    VOTE  
 
ANX C2100043 and ZA C2100043:  Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Tuner LLLP have petitioned to annex into 
the city limits of Dawsonville the 70.808 acre (amended application) tract known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located 
at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted 
Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family Residential).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on September 
14, 2020; City Council on November 16, 2020 City Council postponed until January 19, 2021;  City Council on June 21, 
2021 and City Council for decision on July 19, 2021  

 
 

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• The property fronts on the east side of Perimeter Road from Turner Drive to Dawson County 
High School. 

• The request has been amended to develop 70.808-acre tract with 124 Lots with a goal to 
develop max 212 Lots. 

• The density will be 3.0. 
• Traffic study has been performed; no mitigation required. 
• Planning Commission held Public Hearings on 09.14.2020 and 11.9.2020.  Several citizens 

voiced concerns in opposition. 
• Planning Commission recommended denial due to this Annexation creating an unincorporated 

Island and traffic concerns. 
• City Council held 1st Public Hearing on 11.16.2020 and postponed to 01.19.2021; placed in 

arbitration on 01.19.2021; Dawson County withdrew objection on 05.11.2021 (see Timeline 
Exhibit A). 

• If application is approved Planning Department request the City Council, consider the conditions 
as highlighted on Planning and Zoning letter dated 01.14.2021 (see Exhibit B). 

 
OPTIONS: 
 

 
RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

 
DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 





















































































































































































































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:  Building Regulations Chapter 102 Sec102-19   _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  July 19, 2021      ___________ 
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  FIRST READING 
 
An Ordinance to Amend The City of Dawsonville Code of Ordinances Regarding Fire 
Prevention and Protection; To Provide for an Effective Date; And for Other Purposes (First 
Reading: July 19, 2021; Second Reading and Consideration to Adopt: August 2, 2021) 
 
 

 
    History/Facts/Issues: 
 

Planning and Zoning Department is requesting approval of Chapter 102 Sec 102-19 Exhibit A building 
regulation amendments. 

  
City Building Ordinance was last updated in 2009. International Building and Residential code were updated 
in 2020. Amendments will align the City Ordinance with current Dawson County Fire Prevention and 
Protection Ordinance. 

 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
  
Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Approve Land Development Regulation Chapter 102 Sec 102-19 Building Regulation Exhibit A.   

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning_______________________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ___________________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 





 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
REGARDING FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION; 

TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 02-2021 
 

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Dawsonville is empowered pursuant to Section 
1.12 of its Charter to regulate the erection and construction of buildings and all other structures, 
and to adopt codes for that purpose;  

 
WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Dawsonville has previously adopted codes to 

regulate the construction of buildings and other structures, including but not limited to codes 
related to fire safety and prevention; 

 
WHEREAS, the Dawsonville City Council now finds that it is in the public interest to 

update and amend the existing Code of Ordinances as the same concern fire safety and prevention. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, The Council of the City of Dawsonville hereby ordains as follows:  
 

1. Ordinance Amendments 

The City of Dawsonville Code of Ordinances is hereby modified as provided in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 

 
2. Severability 

It is the express intent of the Dawsonville City Council that this Ordinance be consistent 
with both Federal and State law. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of the Ordinance which may be given effect without the invalid 
provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared 
severable. 

 
3.     Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage.  

 

 

 

 

Subject Matter: Fire Prevention and Protection 
Date of First Reading: July 19, 2021 
Date of Second Reading: August 2, 2021 
Date of Adoption:  
 



 

Page 2 of 2  

 

SO ORDAINED this _____   day of ______   2021. 

 
By:        

       Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
               
               
       William Illg, Council Member Post 2 
 
               
               
       John Walden, Council Member Post 3 
 
 
               
       Mark French, Council Member Post 4 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Chapter 102 - BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS[1]  

Footnotes:  

--- (1) ---  

State Law reference— Water Well Standards Act of 1985, O.C.G.A. § 12-5-120 et seq.; access to and 
use of public facilities by physically handicapped persons, O.C.G.A. § 30-3-1 et seq.; repair, closing and 
demolition of dwellings unfit for human habitation or buildings or structures that imperil health, safety or 
welfare, O.C.G.A. § 36-61-11; authority to demolish structures where drug crimes are committed, 
O.C.G.A. § 41-2-7; authority to repair, close or demolish unfit buildings or structures, O.C.G.A. § 41-2-7; 
county or municipal ordinances relating to unfit buildings or structures, O.C.G.A. § 41-2-9 et seq.; fire 
escapes in buildings, O.C.G.A. § 8-2-50 et seq.  

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  

Secs. 102-1—102-18. - Reserved. 

ARTICLE II. - STATE CONSTRUCTION CODES[2]  

 

Footnotes:  

--- (2) ---  

State Law reference— State construction codes, O.C.G.A. § 8-2-20 et seq.  

Sec. 102-19. - Adoption by reference.  

(a)  The following codes and their Georgia Amendments as the same are adopted and amended from 
time to time by the Department of Community Affairs, comprising the Georgia Minimum Standards and 
Requirements for Construction, Alteration, Etc., of Buildings and Other Structures, shall be enforced 
within the City of Dawsonville:  

(1)  International Building Code;  

(2)  International Fuel Gas Code;  

(3)  International Mechanical Code;  

(4)  International Plumbing Code;  

(5)  International Electrical Code;  

(6)  International Fire Code;  

(7)  International Energy Conservation Code; and  

(8)  International Residential Code.  

(b)  Local amendments.  

 

(1)  The International Fire Code shall be amended as follows:  

a.  Section 903 of this Code which concerns Automatic Sprinkler Systems is amended to provide 
that:  

i)  Sprinkler Standards.  

Exhibit "A"



 

(1)  All buildings 10,000 square feet or more under a common roof, any building over 
one story in height, or any building with an occupant load of 100 or more persons 
shall be sprinkled with an approved N.F.P.A. 13 system with the exception of the 
following:  

(i)  Single family dwellings.  

(2)  All buildings 6,000 square feet or more in an area under a common roof where 
vehicles are pulled inside for the purpose of maintenance, repair, storage, or 
installation of all accessories shall be fully sprinkled with an approved sprinkler 
system except where vehicle bay areas in a building are less than or equal to 600 
square feet, it shall be permissible to place up to six sprinkler heads off of the 
domestic water supply in lieu of sprinkling the entire building. In so doing, 
calculations must be performed by an approved sprinkler contractor certified by 
the State of Georgia and such calculations must be shown on the plans submitted 
for approval by the Fire Marshall's Office.  

ii)  All day care and preschool occupancies must install a sprinkler system in accordance 
with N.F.P.A. 13 R.  

iii)  All home day care occupancies with seven or more children must install a sprinkler 
system in accordance with N.F.P.A. 13 R.  

iv)  All group home care occupancies must install a sprinkler system in accordance with 
N.F.P.A. 13 R.  

v)  Mixed Occupancies existing in the same building as a residential occupancy must install 
a sprinkler system in accordance with N.F.P.A. 13 R. Where residential occupancies 
are located above any nonresidential occupancy, there shall be a fire resistance 
separated rating of not less than one hour.  

vi)  All structures installing a 13 R sprinkler system must also install a sprinkler system in 
the attic area.  

vii)  Multi-family dwellings up to and including three stories in height shall be sprinkled with 
an approved sprinkler system modified to include full sprinkler coverage in all attics and 
breezeways. Sprinkler system may be omitted if two hour fire resistance rated wall is 
provided from both sides of common wall or imaginary lot line. 

b)  The fire code official shall have the authority to require construction documents and 
calculations for all fire protection systems and to require permits be issued for the installation, 
rehabilitation or modification of any fire protection system. Construction documents for fire 
protection systems shall be submitted for review and approval prior to system installation.  

c)  In the event that future state minimum requirements exceed the protections provided by this 
local amendment, then the more stringent requirements shall apply and shall be enforced 
within the City of Dawsonville.  

(2)  The International Residential Code shall be amended as follows:  

a)  Section 302.1 of this Code is amended to provide that an exterior wall with a fire separation 
distance less than twenty feet  of any structure designed for human occupancy or lot/property 
line shall have not less than a one-hour UL approved fire-resistive rating with exposure from 
both sides.  

b)  Any structures involved are to be constructed in a manner and with noncombustible materials 
which will ensure that the structures shall be in compliance with the fire rating standards for 
proposed spacing. Said structures shall be so constructed in accordance with the plans and 
conditions approved by the Building Official and the Fire Marshall's Office.  

c)  In the event that future state minimum requirements exceed the protections provided by this 
local amendment, then the more stringent requirements shall apply and shall be enforced 
within the City of Dawsonville.  

(Ord. of 6-7-2004; Ord. of 12-5-2005(4), § 2; Ord. of 3-3-2009, §§ 2, 3)   

Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:  TRANSFER PROPERTY OWNERSHIP FROM DDA TO CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021       
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
Planning and Zoning Department is requesting the following two properties ownership be rededicated from DDA back to the City of 
Dawsonville: 
 

• TMP: D04 020 001, City Hall. 
• TMP: D04 020, Main Street Park. 

 
    History/Facts/Issues: Downtown Development Authority Board approved the request on March 22,2021.  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
Approve the transfer of ownership of City Hall and Main Street Park from DDA to the City of Dawsonville.   

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 







































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA)- RESOLUTION AND PROJECT 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL FOR THE RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT FUNDING, OPEN A BANK ACCOUNT 
AND EXECUTE DOCUMENTS RELATED TO ARPA 

 
     ROBIN WILL PRESENT AN OUTLINE OF THE PROGRAM DISCUSSING GUIDELINES, 

RESTRICTIONS, AND A RECOMMENDATION FOR PROJECTS UTILIZING THE FUNDING 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 



The American Rescue Plan Act 

 

1. Unprecedented time 
2. $65 billion of direct aid to every city, towns, or villages. 
3. New guidance 
4. Allowable:   

B. Public health  
C. Community development  
D. Premium wages (safety workers)  
E. Revenue replacement  
F. Water/sewer infrastructure.   

 
Encouraging use:  addressing racial disparities, inequities, and disproportionate harmed. 

     5.   Prohibited:   pension funds, legal settlements and federal match. 

6. Cities and Counties over 50,000 in population can get their monies directly from the US treasury 
through a portal they have sent up on May 10th.  (Entitled) 

7. Non-entitled, that is Cities and Counties under 50,000, will get theirs by way of the State.   
8. The State has 30 days to distribute. 
9. We will get 50% now and then 50% 12 months later 
10. Total to receive:  $1,212,174, 1st installment was $606,087 
11. Proposed use of funds:    Water/Sewer infrastructure  

Revenue replacement 
 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION R2021-03 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEOGRIA APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR, CITY MANAGER AND MAYOR TO EXECUTE 
CERTAIN DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO APPLY FOR AND ACCEPT LOCAL RECOVERY 
ASSISTANCE FUNDS UNDER THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.   
 

WHEREAS, Congress authorized the disbursement of Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery 
Funds under the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”) to aid local government in responding to and 
recovering from the coronavirus pandemic; and  

 
WHEREAS, said funds will be distributed to the City of Dawsonville by the Georgia Office of 

Planning & Budget following the completion of an application for funding as well as registration with certain 
federal programs, including the System for Award Management (“SAM”) program, and compliance with the 
guidelines, terms and conditions specified by the United States Department of Treasury; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to authorize the Finance Director and City Manager to complete and 

execute all documents required online for the disbursement of funds, to establish a bank account for the 
receipt of said funds, to authorize the Mayor to execute originals of all documents required to participate in 
the ARPA program and to ratify actions taken by the Mayor, Finance Director and City Manager;  

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to develop a program specifying the use of funds disbursed to the City 

under the ARPA program and requests the City Manager to prepare a list of recommended eligible uses for 
submittal to the Mayor and Council for its approval;  

 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED by the Council for the City of Dawsonville that it authorizes the 

Mayor, Finance Director and City Manager to execute all documents necessary to apply for, accept, deposit, 
and report on local recovery assistance dollars under the ARPA program, ratifies said documents and directs 
the Finance Director and City Manager to provide the Mayor and Council quarterly reports on the ARPA 
program and the City’s participation in said program following approval by the City of eligible projects. This 
resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption.  

 
SO RESOLVED this 2nd day of August 2021. 

 
        ________________________________ 
        Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 

        ________________________________ 
        Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

        ________________________________ 
        William Illg, Councilmember Post 2 

 
 

        ________________________________ 
                   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 

 
 

        _______________________________ 
        Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 

 
 

         
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   2021 GEORGIA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION (GMA) SAFETY GRANT AWARD 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO ACCEPT THE 2021 GMA SAFETY GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,000 
 
        
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• SAFETY GRANT IS ONLY AVAILABLE TO PARTICIPANTS IN GMA INSURANCE 
PROGRAMS 

• PURPOSE IS TO PROVIDE A FINANCIAL INCENTIVE TO ASSIST MEMBERS IN 
IMPROVING THEIR EMPLOYEE SAFETY AND GENERAL PUBLIC LIABILITY/LOSS 
CONTROL EFFORTS THROUGH PURCHASING ELIGIBLE TRAINING, EQUIPMENT 
AND/OR SERVICES 

• OUR PURCHASES WILL INCLUDE REFLECTIVE VESTS AND RAINGEAR, SAFEGRIP 
GLOVES, RECHARGEABLE FLASHLIGHTS AND HEADLAMPS, TABLE CARTS, BLUE 
CARD CERTIFICATION TRAINING, FLAGGER TRAINING, TEMPERATURE KIOSKS 
 

 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   OVERNIGHT PARKING ON CITY PROPERTY 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO DISCUSS PARKING ISSUES ON CITY PROPERTY AND DETERMINE NECESSARY       
ACTION – ATTORNEY TALLANT WILL PROVIDE AN OVERVIEW ON THE ORDINANCE  

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14     
 

 

 









                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     15     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

JULY 13 FOR JULY 19, 2021 MEETING 

COVID: We continue to monitor information as it comes out about the American Rescue Plan, and we will 
have final dollar amounts and recommendations at the July 19th Meeting. Kudos to Financial Director 
Gazaway for handling this ever-changing process. A temperature reader, similar to one in City Hall, is in 
place at the Maintenance Area for use each day by Utility and Public Works Staff.  We continue to fog the 
City Hall complex with disinfectant, most recently planned for July 14th. COVID numbers are showing 
some increases in case numbers, and we are awaiting word of how the 4th of July holiday travel impacted 
those numbers. The Delta variant is in Georgia and of special concern. If you have watched the newS 
about what’s happening in Missouri, we can expect the same here in the coming weeks as we still only 
have herd immunity estimated at 62%. 30-59 YOA are showing the highest increase. We need to maintain 
our vigilance, urge vaccination and proper healthy practices. No staff are absent due to COVID, and we 
continue to encourage staff to get vaccinated even allowing them to do so on staff time. 

Highway American Flag Program for Veterans: Staff were proud to install the crosses and American flags 
around town for Independence Day. No flags blew down this go around. We will complete this task again 
in November for Veteran’s Day. 
 
Law Enforcement: Two young men were arrested for attempted arson at Wallace Park. Later in the same 
evening, they broke into the high school and stole a golf cart among other things. We have a meeting 
scheduled with Major Greg Rowan about the deputy program. 
 
GRHOF/Dawsonville History Museum: The exterior work bringing water and sewer to the Pirkle Room is 
underway and we are seeking cost estimates for the framing and other work inside. A very successful 
Memorial Day Car Show was held as well as a successful Corn Hole Tournament fund raiser earlier this 
month. The GA Racing Hall of Fame Induction Ceremony is scheduled for August 7th followed by the Labor 
Day Car Show in September. Efforts are underway to attain a grant from state funding for the facility. 
 
Food Truck Night: The July 9th event, originally scheduled to be held in Main Street Park, was moved to 
the Farmer’s Market due to the need for shade in the heat of summer and in the event of sudden 
afternoon and evening thunderstorms.  After the event, a movie night paid for and sponsored by Local 
Church Dawsonville Campus, formally Mountain Lake Church was held on the amphitheater lawn. The 
classic Disney movie Moana was shown. Our food truck event was a huge success with all three-food 
truckS selling out, one by 730 PM. The movie night was well attended and enjoyed by all. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: Turnipseed Engineering is developing the final design as well as the USDA 
funding package for this priority project. 
 
Water System Upgrades: We have started the EPD approval procedure for drilling a new well. Once 
approved, we can begin on designing, drilling or any related work on a filter system for what would 
become well #112. Work continues on repairs to well #110. A large water leak was repaired along Allen 
Street. Fire hydrant testing was completed as part of annual ISO requirements. 
 



Severe Storms: As usual for this time of year, Utility and Public Works staff responded to several sudden, 
heavy rainstorms, some with power outages. These were handled with no problems. 
 
Paving & Projects: With the City Council’s acceptance of the bids for the paving project that includes Main 
Street and Jack Heard Road as well as Memory Lane, we await the completion of the contracts from the 
contractor and then a pre-construction meeting will be held with paving to follow. We have instructed 
Turnipseed Engineering to begin engineering work on priority roads to be paved out of SPLOST VII. This 
will speed up the process once those funds are available. These roads would include, Maple Street, 
Richmond Drive, the Pearl Chambers area, Bear’s Den, Stonewall subdivision, Rain Hill subdivision, Stegall 
Place, and Burt’s Crossing I. We will have them engineer Creekstone Phase I as well for pavement covered 
by infrastructure fees. 
 
Sidewalk Projects: With the City Council’s acceptance of the bids for the Allen Street sidewalk extension, 
we await the completion of the contractor’s portion of the contracts followed by a pre-construction 
meeting, with work to start soon after. In the near future, we will have Turnipseed begin engineering 
some other sidewalk projects in hopes of finding funds for the work. 
 
Main Street Park: Progress continues as we work to increase the amenities and operation of this 
wonderful addition to the city, including:  

• The dog park project continues as we work with our Eagle Scout candidate. Trees have been 
planted, benches installed and some of the signage erected. Work should continue as the project 
is completed by the end of summer. There is now a sidewalk from the new Oakdale subdivision to 
the dog park from which people can easily access Main Street Park. We hope to connect the 
Stonewall subdivision as well. 

• With the delay involved with the trail IGA with the county, the Eagle Scout candidate had to 
withdraw this project from his application and select a project elsewhere. We will continue to 
work with the county to get an IGA in place. We met with the EMS Chief and resolved issues 
surrounding location of the bridge. 

• The Eagle Scout candidate continues his work designing and constructing a lending library that 
will be installed in the vicinity of the Main Street Park Playground.  

• The contractor has completed pouring the concrete pads for the fitness equipment and 
installation should start soon after the concrete has cured. While on site, the contractor will 
repair the sidewalk dug up to make the waterline repair on Allen Street. We will also have the 
contractor construct some concrete steps near the rest room. 

• The contractor should start work on the concrete floors for the two picnic shelters soon. All our 
concrete work has been hampered by wet weather and the limited availability of concrete. 

• The concrete skate pad is complete, and we are awaiting installation of the elements once 
manufacturing is completed. We are hoping to have everything in place before the September 3rd 
Food Truck Night. As part of that event, we hope to have a grand opening with a professional 
skater demonstration and a variety of door prizes. 

• On June 26th the Women’s Club featured Main Street Park’s pollinator garden as part of their 
annual tour. 



Making the City Greener: Staff continue to research cost effective methods for becoming greener. The 
City Manager participated in a teleconference with County Commission Chair Billy Thurmond to explore a 
variety of alternative energy options and available resources. Thurmond, School Superintendent Gibbs 
and I have a face-to-face meeting this week with a solar energy provider, Cherry Street. They install and 
maintain solar systems on facilities and properties at their cost in exchange for energy provision. We are 
also looking into EV charging stations for the City Hall complex. We looked at these four years ago and 
they were quite expensive. The costs are improving, and we are researching feasibility again. Additionally, 
we are researching alternative fuel vehicles, such as, EV and LP gas. 
 
Administrative Variance: PZ Director Picklesimer approved an administrative variance for rear setback 
encroachment on the owner’s property at 178 Shepard Drive, which is in Sweetwater Preserve (new 
subdivision located at Perimeter Road and 9S). This variance, AVAR-C1200231, is well within the allowable 
20% and allows for a 2’6” reduction in the rear setback of 20’ to 17.5’. This variance does not allow for 
any additional encroachment. Picklesimer will be attending the July 19th City Council Meeting should 
anyone have questions. 
 
2021 LGRMS Safety Grant Awarded: We received word that the City of Dawsonville has been awarded a 
$6,000.00 safety grant. This Safety Grant was requested from the Georgia Municipal Association’s Safety 
and Liability Management Grant Program, and this will be the sixth consecutive rear we have received the 
maximum amount. The funds will be used for such safety items as, high visibility rain gear and reflective 
vests, table carts for folding tables, flashlights and head lamps, Blue Card Certification training from 
GSWCC, flagger training, and rapid screen thermal contactless temperature kiosks. 
 
Personnel: Several staff have taken some well-deserved time off this month. GMA is scheduled to present 
to staff everything they need to know about the new saving benefit program. We continue to advertise 
for one position in the Utility Department as well as shared positions with Public Works for some seasonal 
maintenance personnel. 
 
Leak Adjustments: at 1 address for these amounts: 

Water   $215.16  Sewer   $260.16 

Total     $475.32 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/19/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH JUNE 30, 2021  

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   16      
 

 

 



REVENUES 
Taxes 

Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental revenues 
Fees 

Other 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Department: 

Council 

Mayor 
Elections 

Administration 

City Hall building 
Animal control 

Roads 
Parks 
Planning and zoning 

Economic development 

Total expenditures 

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

Transfer in From Reserves 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 
GENERAL FUND 

July I, 2020 -June 30, 2021 

Budget Actual 

$ 1,235,050 $ 1,863,711 
115,975 159,192 
25,000 157,920 

269,200 281,362 
234,473 104,439 

1,879,698 2,566,624 

99,215 89,946 
21,380 18,333 

739,865 843,901 
118,000 156,903 

1,500 143 
537,517 560,591 
47,000 673,119 

285,721 324,635 
29,500 37,000 

1,879,698 2,704,571 

(137,947) 

137,947 

Percentage 100 

150.90% 
137.26% 
631.68% 
104.52% 
44.54% 

136.54% 

90.66% 
85.75% 
0.00% 

114.06% 
132.97% 

9.53% 
104.29% 

1432.17% 
113.62% 
125.42% 

143.88% 






	1 07.19.2021 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 06.21.2021 MINUTES.draft
	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items OPEN BK ACCT
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1 07.19.2021_EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA
	9. 2 ANX-ZA C2100043
	9. 2 anx c2100043.pdf

	10. 1 Executive Summary BUILDING REGULATIONS ORD AMENDMENT
	10. 2 Memo to Council_Building Regulation Ord Amendment
	10. 3 02-2021 Ordinance Amendment_Fire Protection and Prevention
	Fire Protection and Prevention Ordinance Amendment.pdf

	11. 1 Executive Summary TRANSFER WARRANTY DEEDS
	11. 2 WARRANTY DEED TRANSFERS
	12. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items ARPA
	12. 2 ARP summary
	12. 2 Resolution R2021-03_ARPA Funds
	13. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items SAFETY GRANT
	14. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items PARKING
	14. 2 PARKING ORDINANCE
	15. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	15. 07192021 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	16. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	16. 2 Reports



